Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of R Retail Ventures Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the
year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2023, and total comprehensive income (comprising of loss and other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
“Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and the
reports of the other auditors as furnished to us, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
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We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the standalone
financial statements

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those
Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

7.

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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9. We

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

10. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure
B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

11. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(©

(@)

(e)

®

(®

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except that the backup of books of
account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained
on a daily basis on servers physically located in India during the year.

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive income, the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made to our comment in paragraph 11(b) above that the back-up of the books of
account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained
on a daily basis on servers physically located in India.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “Annexure A”.
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i

ii.

iii.

iv.

V.

vi.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2023 under the
applicable law or accounting standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses
on long-term contract. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March
31, 2023.

There were no amount which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 23(x) to the standalone financial
statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries (Refer Note 23(x) to the standalone financial statements); and

(c¢) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

As provision As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), which provides for books of account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log
and related matters in the accounting software used by the Company, is applicable to the
Company only with effect from financial year beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under
clause (g) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is
currently not applicable.
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12. The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are applicable only to public
companies. Accordingly, reporting under Section 197(16) is not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026 E/E-300009

Pl

ES‘N\ Devang Mehta
Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No: 118785
Date: September 28, 2023 UDIN: 23118785BGWHWG4586
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
of R Retail Ventures Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
financial statements.
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 11(g) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of R Retail
Ventures Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAL

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

r\“\) .?f‘_\-gv- > \ e

@/J‘Devang Mehta
Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No: 118785
Date: September 28, 2023 UDIN: 23118785BGWHWG4586
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i

ii.

(a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment
Property under construction.

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company does not have any Intangible assets and accordingly,
reporting under this Clause is not applicable.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee, as disclosed in
Note 4 and 8 to the standalone financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets). Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the revaluation is based
on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if the change is
10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) does not arise.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been
initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and
therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately
disclosed the details in its standalone financial statements does not arise.

(a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by Management is appropriate.

(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company is
not required to file quarterly returns or statements with the bank and has accordingly not
filled the same. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether these returns or
statements are in agreement with the unaudited books of accounts of the company does not

arise.
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i. (a) The Company has made investments in three companies, granted unsecured loans to three

)

companies, advance in the nature of loan to one company and stood guarantee to one
company. The Company does not have any joint ventures and associate entities. The
aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with
respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries and to parties
other than subsidiaries are as per the table given below:

Advances in

Parircaltns Guarantees Loans nature of
(INR Lakhs) (INR Lakhs) loans
e (INR Lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year

- Subsidiaries 2,283 7,203 -

- Others = = 883
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of the above case

- Subsidiaries 28,923 24,998 -

- Others | = =) =

(Also refer Note 6 and 24 to the standalone financial statements)

In respect of the aforesaid guarantees and loans/advances in the nature of loans, the terms
and conditions under which such loans were granted are not prejudicial to the Company’s
interest.

(c) In respect of the aforesaid loans/advances in nature of loans, no schedule of repayment of

(@)

(e)

®

principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the Company since it is repayable
on demand. Therefore, in the absence of stipulation of repayment terms, we are unable to
comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and payment of interest.

In respect of the aforesaid loans and there is no stipulation of repayment terms, hence we
are unable to comment if there is any amount overdue for more than ninety days.

There were no loans or advances in nature of loans which fell due during the year and were
renewed/extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing
overdue loans or advances in nature of loan,

Following loans or advances in nature of loans were granted during the year, including to
related parties under Section 2(76), which are repayable on demand or where no schedule
for repayment of principal has been stipulated by the Company.

Related
All Parties Promoters Parties (INR

Particulars (INR Lakhs) (INR Lakhs) Lakhs)
Aggregate of loans/advances in nature of
loan
- Repayable on demand 7,203 - 7,203
- Agreement does not specify any terms or
period of repayment 883 883 -
Percentage of loans/advances in nature of
loan to the total loans 100% 11% 89%

(Also refer Note 6 and 24 to the standalone financial statements)

(Iltu‘_d

([ \ Shartcr o senonptan S)E ‘
Il\it\l"\ ) :":‘."}[‘ 304026E _.'.::.I:. o \\w/ g
-.“"'11‘..“_1_.* Mumb al >

——



Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report )

Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of R Retail
Ventures Private Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023
Page 3 of 5

1v.

Vii.

Vil

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

®

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees
and security made. Further, as the Company is engaged in the business of providing
infrastructural facilities, the provisions of Section 186 (except for sub-section 1) are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the
extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues in respect of income tax though there has been a slight delay in a few cases,
and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund,
professional tax, employee state insurance corporation, goods and services tax and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. Also refer Note 13 to the
standalone financial statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company,
we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes
by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries. The Company does not have any joint ventures and associate entities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,

we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries. The Company does not have any joint venture or associate entities.
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x. (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully

xi. (a)

(b)

or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form
ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not
required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause
3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in

Xii.

xiii.

X1v.

xvi. (a)

(b)

(c)

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly,
the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it,
the reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required under Indian Accounting
Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the
company is not required to constitute an audit committee under Section 177 of the act and,
accordingly to this extent, the reporting under Clause 3(xiii) of the order is not applicable to
the company.

The Company is not mandated to have an internal audit system during the year.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section
192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not conducted non-banking financial and housing finance activities during
the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the |'cp.nr_t_in-g; under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order

is not applicable to the Company. g Co. Ch“"“‘l‘cd:]“‘::l'-u
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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 10 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of R Retail
Ventures Private Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023
Page 5 of 5

(d)

xvil.

xviii.

xix.

Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company,
the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)
does not have any CICs other than the Company. We have not, however, separately evaluated
whether the information provided by the management is accurate and complete.
Accordingly, the reporting under the clause 3 (xvi) (d) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and had incurred cash
losses of Rs. 118.59 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause (xviii) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios (Also refer Note 23 to the standalone financial statements), ageing and expected dates
of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of
Standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has
been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

N

U{V\ Devang Mehta
Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No: 118785
Date: September 28, 2023 UDIN: 23118785BGWHWG4586
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[R Retail Ventures Private Limited

Standalone Balance sheet as at 31st March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
As at As at
Particulers Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 57.98 75.86
Right-of-use asset 3(b) 219.57 96,36
Investment property under construction 4 14,840.74 14,603.40
Investment in subsidiaries 5 3.05 3,05
Income tax assets 7(b) 701.78 387.94
Financial assets
Loans 6(c) 24,998.00 -
Deferred tax assets (net) 7(c) 248.87 320.60
Other non-current assets 10(a) 5413.18 3,002.74
Total non-current assets 46,483.17 18,489.95
Current assets
Inventories 8 42,444.86 31,202.96
Financial assets
(iy Cash and cash equivalents 9 7,097.77 1,954.64
(i) Bank balances other than (i) above 9(a) 1,090.21 105,79
(iii) Loans 6(a) - 19,448.00
(iv) Other financial assets 6(b) 4,272.23 2,616.33
Other current assets 10(b) 3,906.92 1,669.56
Total current assets 58,811.99 56,897.28
Total assets 105,295.16 75,387.23
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 11 40,622.00 2.00
Other equity 12 5,102.81 (5,379.83)
Total equity 4572481 (5,377.83)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 - 53,625.82
(ii) Lease liabilities 3(b) 99.43 -
Provisions 14 19.18 18.91
Total non-current liabilities 118.61 53,644.73
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 - 1,912.07
(i) Lease liabilities 3(b) 121.06 115.55
(iii) Trade payables 15
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 138.17 240.37
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 3,203.18 1,876.20
and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 16 70.24 101.41
Other current liabilities 17 55,904,32 22,852.01
Provisions 14 14.77 22.72
Total current liabilities 59,451.74 27,120.33
Total liabilities 59,570.35 80,765.06
Total equity and liabilities 105,295.16 75,387.23
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
This is the standalone balance sheet referred to in our report of even dale.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors
Firm Registration Number. 304026 E/E-300009 R Retail Ventures Private Limited
CIN: U70200MH2018PTC313615
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Mr. Devang Mehta r. Sandeep Runwal Ms. Sangeeta Prasad Ms Nirali Mehta
Partner Director Director Company Secretary
Membership No: 118785 DIN: 00068584 DIN: 02791944 M. No.A38099
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Standalone statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income
Other income 18 1,732.83 1,461.07
Total Income 1,732.83 1,461.07
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 19 828.13 945.47
Depreciation and amortisation expense 20 87.41 83.62
Other expenses 21 26,622.72 4,116.33
Finance costs 22 8.78 16.03
Total expenses 27,547.04 5161.45
Loss before tax (25,814.21) (3,700.38)
Income tax expense (charge/credit)

- Current tax = -
- Deferred tax 7(a) 68.29 (46.75)
Loss for the year (25,882.50) (3,653.63)
Other Comprehensive Income
Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remesurement of post-employment benefit 13.68 14.31

Income tax relating to these items (3.44) (3.60)
Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 10.24 10.71
Total Comprehensive income for the year (25,872.26) (3,642.92)
|Loss per equity share (Face value per share: Rs.10)
- Basic and Diluted (in Rs.) 32 (2,284.67) (18,268.15)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements.
This is the standalone statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors
Firm Registration Number: 304026 E/E-300009 R Retail Ventures Private Limited

CIN: U70200MH2018PTC313615
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Mr. Devang Mehta

r. Sandeep Runwal

Ms?®Sangeeta Pras

Ms Nirali Mehta

Company Secretary
M. No.A38099

Partner Director Director
Membership No: 118785 DIN: 00068584 DIN: 02791944

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: September 28, 2cp3Date: Septerben 28,2023  Date: Septemben 28,
2023

Place: Mumbai
Date: Septemben 28, 2023




|R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Standalone statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Atl amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Cash flow from operating activities

Loss befare tax

Adjustments for

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Interest on lease liabilities

Interest income on fixed deposit

Interest income on Inter corporate deposit to subsidiary

Changes in fair value of financial liability at fair value through profit or loss

Operating cash flows before working capital changes
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase) in inventories
(Increase) in other financial assets
(Increase) in other non current assets
(Increase) in other current assets
Increase in trade payables
Increase in provisions
(Decrease) in other financial liablities
Increase in other current liabilities
Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property. plant and equipment

Payments for investment properties under construction
Investment in fixed deposit

Investment in subsidiaries

Inter corporate deposit given to subsidiary

Interest received from Inter corporate deposit to subsidiary
Interest received

Net cash (outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bormowings

Principal element of lease payments
Interest paid

Proceeds from inter corporate deposit
Repayments of inter corporate deposit

rNat cash (outflow)inflow from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end (Refer note 9)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements

(25,814 21)

87 41
6.81
(5.31)
(1,655 59)
26,076.78

{1,304.11)

(11,185.70}
(4.19)
(2.410.45)
(2,337.36)
1.224.79
573
(3117)
33,052.31
17,009.85
313.85
16,696.00

(16.12)
(237 34)
(984 41)

(5.550.00)

110
(6,786.77)
(4639 77)

(119 52)
(6.81)

(4,766.10)

5,143.13
1.954 64
7,097.77

_—

(3,700.38)

83.62

1472
(6.89)
(1,432.41)

3.498.16

(1,543.18)

(14,484 22)
(470
(1,797 .89)
(1,308 12)
1.389.59
4.35

(9 48)
16.974.63

(779.02)
(257.53)

(1,036.55)

(3201)
{29 22)
(105 79)
(2.08)
(2.418 00)
143 24
6.89

(2,436.94)

4.63977
(105 64)
(14.72)
1.20000
{1,200 00)

4,519.41

1.045.92
90872

1,954 .64

—_——i=—

This is the Standalone statement of cash flow referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number' 304026E/E-300009
&

Mr. Devang Mehta

For and on behalf of the board of directors
R Retail Ventures Private Limited
CIN: UTO200MH2018PTC 313615

L)
r. Sandeep Runwal
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N Melde

Coainer e r. Sangeeta Prasad Ms Nirali Mehta
(_G.J ™ . 4 irector Director Company Secretary
Membership No: 118785 DIN: 00068584 DIN: 02791944 M. No.A38099
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai i j
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Standalone statement of changes in equity for year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital (Refer note 11)

Particulars Total
As at 31 March 2021 2.00
Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31 March 2022 2.00
Changes in equity share capital 40,620.00
As at 31 March 2023 40,622.00
B Other equity (Refer note 12)

Particulars Reserves and Surplus

Retained Earnings Total
As at 31 March 2021 (1,736.91) (1,736.91)
Loss for the year (3,653.63) (3,653.63)
Other comprehensive income 10.71 10.71
As at 31 March 2022 (5,379.83) (5,379.83)
Loss for the year (25,882.50) (25,882.50)
Other comprehensive income 10.24 10.24
As at 31 March 2023 (31,252.09) (31,252.09)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026 E/E-300009

A~

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the board of directors

R Retail Ventures Private Limited

CIN: U70200MH2018PTC313615

Mr. Devang Mehta
Partner
Membership No: 118785

Place: Mumbai
Date: Septemben 28,2023

andeep Runwal
Director
DIN: 00068584

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 23,
2023

Ms. Sangeeta Prasad
Director
DIN: 02791944

Place: Mumbai
Date: Scptembien 2,
20273

rd
N M MC’J'\L-\
Ms Nirali Mehta

Company Secretary
M. No.A38099

Place: Mumbai
Date: SCp‘ECv\« Len 2%
2023




R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

1

-~ )‘ {. i
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Background

R Retail Ventures Private Limited ("the Company") is a joint venture between Runwal Developers Private Limited and White Harbor
Investment Limited. The Company is a private company domiciled in India and is incorporated on 6th September, 2018 under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is situated at Runwal and Omkar
Esquare, 5th Floor, Off. Eastern Express Highway, Opp. Sion Chunabhatti Signal, Sion (East), Mumbai - 400022. The Company is
engaged primarily in the business of real estate construction, development, other related activities for residential premises and
leasing of commercial premises.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these standalone financial statements.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

(a) Compliance with Ind AS

The standalone financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 133 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of
the Act

(b) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value.

(c) Current - non current classification

The normal operating cycle in respect of operation relating to under construction real estate project depends on signing of
agreement, size of the project, phasing of the project, type of development, project complexities, approvals needed and realisation
of project into cash and cash equivalents. Accordingly, project related assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-
current based on operating cycle of three years. All other assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-current
based on a period of twelve months

(d) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 23rd March 2022 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective 1st April 2022, These amendments are not
expected to have a material impact on the company in the current or future reporting periods.

(e) New amendments issued but not effective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 31st March 2023 notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 (the ‘Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards, and are effective 1st April 2023.

The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1, Presentation of financial statements. The other
amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications,

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the company in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12
as the companies accounting policy already complies with the now mandatory treatment

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internat reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The board of directors assesses the financial performance and position of the Company, and makes strategic decisions. Refer note
31 for segment information

Foreign currency translations
(a) Functional and presentation currency
Iltems included in the standalone financial statements are measured using the currency of primary economic environment in which

the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is R
Retail Ventures Private Limited's functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settliement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss

0%




R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

iv

vi

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Historical cost includes acquisition cost of asset (net of refundable taxes) and any attributable cost to bring the asset to working
conditions for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
Statemnent of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of
Profit and Loss within other gains/ (losses)

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as ‘Capital work-
in-progress’.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the written down value method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which
are in line with Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual values are
not more than 5% of the original cost of assets. The Company has used the following lives to provide depreciation and amortisation:
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Nature of the asset Useful life
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Plant And Machinery. 15 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity expects to use the
assets beyond the lease term.

The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount

Investment property under construction

Investment properties are properties that are held to earn rentals and /or for capital appreciation and not occupied by the Company
for its own use. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs and net of recoverable taxes. The
cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs if recognition criteria are met, When significant parts of the investment
property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Investment properties (Land) which is in the name of the Company are stated at cost where the Company undertakes construction
of commercial premises. Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises of expenditures
incurred in respect of capital projects under development and includes any attributable / allocable cost and other incidental
expenses. Revenues earned, if any, from such capital project before capitalisation are adjusted against the capital work in progress

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are being occupied by the Company
for its own use or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal.
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss in the period of
de-recognition

Impairment of assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverabie
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

*




R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

vii

viii

Investment in subsidiary

An entity is termed as a subsidiary if the company controls the entity. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiary are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication
of impairment exists, the carrying amount of investment is assessed and an impairment provision is recognised, if required
immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of such investment, difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying
amount is recognised in the standalone statement of profit or loss

Inventories
Construction materials and consumables

The construction materials and consumables are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. The construction materials and
consumables purchased for construction work issued to the construction work in progress are treated as consumed.

Construction work in progress

The construction work in progress is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes cost of land, development rights,
rates and taxes, construction costs, borrowing costs, other direct expenditure, allocated overheads and other incidental expenses

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the taxable income of the current period based on the
applicable income tax rates adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Company measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty,

Deferred income tax is provided full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settied

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Leases

As a Lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use
by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Company allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for
which the Company is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a
single lease component,

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

- Fixed payments (including in - substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

- Amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residual value guarantees

- The exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

- Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee's incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions




R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company:

- Where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received

- Uses a build - up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by R Retail Ventures

Private Limited, which does not have recent third party financing, and
- Make adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which has a

similar payment profile to the lease, then the Company use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental borrowing rate

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

- The lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
- any initial direct costs, and

- restoration costs

Right-of-use assets are generaily depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis
If the company is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset's
useful life

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-vaiue assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. The Company has elected to apply
the practical expedient for short term and low-value assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at
call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet

Investments and other financial assets
(a)_Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

= those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the company business model for managing the financial asset and contractual terms of the cash
For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses are recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss or other comprehensive
income.

(b) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets are recognised initially at fair value in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial assets are measured at:

« Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in Other income using
the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in
other gains/(losses). Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

« Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for
selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI.Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/
(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in
statement of profit and loss.




R Retail Ventures Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
= Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI| are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income.

(d) Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised only when:

« The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

* Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the
cash flows to one or more recipients

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains
control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset

(e) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.Note 26 details how
the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk

(f) Income recognition

Interest income:

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income within other income. Interest
income on financial assets at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as part of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Chartered Accountants
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

xiii

xiv

Xv

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment
of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the agreement is discharged, cancelled or expired
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished and the consideration paid, is
recognised in statement of profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

Substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability
becomes payabie on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the
reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the
breach

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation,

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(a) Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument

(b) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and
loss

(c) Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities carried
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in the standalone statement of
profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

A Compulsory Convertible Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (CCPS) issued by the Company is classified as a financial liability
Compuisorily convertible non-cumulative preference shares contain an embeded derivative which is not closely related to host debt
contract. Accordingly, the company has elected to measure the financial liability at their fair values through profit and loss
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Xv

xvii

(d) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially
measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of (i) the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit loss
model as per Ind AS 109 and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income recognised
in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment

(e) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless it is in the
nature of equity contribution by parent

(f) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Trade payables and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are
unpaid. Trade and other financial liabilities are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method

Employees Benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end
of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits
are discounted using the market yieids at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settiement is expected to occur

(iii) Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

xviii

(a) Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan") covering eligible employees in accordance with the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death,
incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of
employment.

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is computed on the basis of an actuarial valuation by an actuary appointed for the
purpose as per projected unit credit method at the end of each financial year.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on Government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in
employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur directly in Other Comprehensive Income. They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately the Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost

(b) Defined contribution plans

Contribution towards provident fund for all employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further
obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations,
apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(a)_Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. These are reviewed at
each reporting period and reflect the best current estimate

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

xix

XX

XX

(b) Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds

Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
« the profit/ (loss) attributable to owners of the Company.
= by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in

ordinary shares issued during the year, if any

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

= the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
« the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest 'Lakhs' as per the requirement of
Schedule lll, unless otherwise stated.

Critical estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company and
are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the
Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences between actual results and estimates are
recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but
provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date

The areas involving critical estimates are:

Useful lives of depreciable property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3(a))

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the
expected usage of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the
usage of certain assets

Defined benefit obligation (Refer note 14)

The cost of defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation along with leave salary are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality,
discount rate, attrition rates and anticipation of future salary increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date

Fair value measurements (Refer note 25)

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are not
available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants
would price the instrument/assets. Management bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this may not
always be available. In that case Management uses the best relevant information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the
actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 3 (b) Right-of-use asset

The Company has taken office premises on lease. The lease arrangement is for a period of 60 months with a non-cancellable pericd of 36

months

i. Amounts recognised in Balance Sheet

The Balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to |

Particulars a1 L
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Right-of-use Asset
Office Premises 219.57 96,36
Total 219.57 96.36
Lease liabilities
Non-current 99.43 -
Current 121.06 115.55
Total 220.49 115.55
ii. Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
The Staternent of Profit and Loss shows the following amounts relating to |
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 31
31 March 2023 March 2022
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Office Premises 106.82 105.14
Less: Amount transferred in inventories and investment property under construction 53.41 52,57
Total 53.41 52.57

The total cash outflow for lease for the year was Rs. 126.33 Lakhs (31st March 2022 was Rs. 120.36 Lakhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended 31

Particulars 31 March 2023 March 2022
Interest Expense (included in finance costs) 6.81 14.72
Total 6.81 14.72

- The Lease Payments are discounted at 10.45% p.a. rate of interest based on market rate
- Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising discounted lease rentals

- Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.




R Retall Vantures Private Limited
Notes 1o siandalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4 Investment praperty under construction

Particul k)
articulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Capitalworkin ¢ o rcial land Total Capitalworkin Commerclal land Total
progress progress
Freehold land
Gross carrylng amaunt
Opening gross carrying amount 11,470 13 11,470 13 E 11,470 13 11,470 13
Additions - . . - - b
Closing gross carrying amount - 11,470.13 11,470.11 - 11,470.13 11,470.13
Building
‘Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 313327 = 313327 3,07814 . 3,078 14
Addilions 23734 = 23734 5513 =: 5512
Closing gross carrylng amount 3,370.81 - 3,370.61 3,133.27 - 313327
Nat clasing c. ing amount 3.070.61 11ﬂ.|3 14.840.74 3.133.27 11,1?_“.13 14,003.40

Investment property include land and capital work in progress far construclion of shopping mall and commercial offices The project is located al Pune

(i) Farr Value

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Imastmont proporly undor construclian 15,341 00 15,103 66
Total 15,341.00 15,103,680

The valualion of investment properly have been i by indep valuer regi: as defined under rule 2 of the Companies {Registered Valuers and Valualion) Rules, 2017 The valualion has been conducled through

markel value method Under market value melhod, ready recokner rale which is equals to market value of commercial land property is considered as fair value of land All resulting fair value eslimales for investment praperties are
included in level 3

(i) Refer Note 13 for intormalion on Invesiment property under consiruction offered as security against borrowings laken by the company

(n)(a) properly under ageing schedule

invesiment property under construction as at March 31, 2023

Particulars Amaunt in i proparty under for the period of

Less than 1 yoar 1-2 yoars_ 2.3 yoars More than 3 years Total
Project in progress - Pune Project 23734 5513 3,078 14 - 3,370 671
Total 23714 55.13 3.078.14 - 3aroe
Inveslment property under construction as at March 31, 2022
Particulars Amount in proparty under for the period of

Loss than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 yoars. Total
Project in prograss - Puns Project 5513 635 36 244278 - 313327
Total 5513 €3538 244378 - 313347 |
{b) There are no caprtal work in progress whose complelion is overdue or has exceeded s cost compared to ils original plan
Note § Investmont in subsidiaries
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
! in
Unquoled
10,500 (31 March 2022 : 10,500) Equity Shares of Histyle Retail Private Limiled 105 105
10,000 (31 March 2022 © 10,000) Equity Shares of Aethon Developers Privale Limiled 100 100
10,000 (31 March 2022 : 10,000) Equity Shares of Galleria Retail Private Limited 100 100

Total 305 305




R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 6 (a) Current Loans (unsecured)

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

Particulars 2023 2022
Inter Corporate Deposit to related parties * 19,448.00
Total - 19,448.00
Note 6 (c) Non Current Loans (unsecured)

As at 3T March As at 31 March
Particulars 2023 2022
inter Corporate Deposit to related parties * [Refer note below] 24,998.00
Total 24,998.00

‘Terms of Inter corporate deposit

The company has provided intercorporate deposit payable on demand

Iinterest on Inter corporate deposit:
The interest rate on Inter corporate deposit is 8% p.a. (Previous year: 8% p.a.}

Terms of repayment of the Inter corporate deposit:
The Inter corporate deposit and interest will be repayable on demand.
Amount outstanding Rs 24 99$ Lakhs (31st March 2022: Rs. 19 448 Lakhs)

Note: The Company does not expect to recall the Inter corporate deposit s within 12 months after the reporting period Accordingiy the !nier

corporate deposit is classified under non current as per ind AS 1

Note 6 (b) Other financial assets

As at 31 March As at 31 March
Particulars 2023 2022
Security Deposit 61.10 61.10
Interest receivable or ICD from related party 4.196.94 254939
Other Receivables 719 3.01
Interest accrued on fixed deposit 7.00 2.83
Total 4,272.23 2,616.33
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 7 Income tax expense

7 (a) Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Particulars

31 March 2023

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022

"Deferred tax

Increase/(Decrease) in deferred tax charge 68.29 (46.75)
Total deferred tax charge/(benefit) 68.29 (46.75)
Total income tax expense 68.29 (46.75)
7 (b) Income tax assets (net)

. As at As at
Farficuiams 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Tax deducted at source (net provision- Nil} 701.78 387.94
Total 701.78 387.94
7 (c) Deferred tax assets

. As at As at
Rarticulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax Assets
Unabsorbed business loss 192.41 24575
Provision for gratuity 4.87 1.09
Provision for compensated absences 3.67 5.69
Preliminary expenses 16.02 32.03
Provision for doubtful assets 52.35 52,35
Difference in depreciation in block of assets (20.45) (16.31)
Total deferred tax assets 248.87 320.60
7 (d) Movement in deferred tax balances

As at Charged/ Charged/ As at

. 01 April 2021 (credited) to (credited) to OCI 31 March 2022
Particulars profit and loss
Deferred tax Assets
Unabsorbed Business Loss 179.57 66.18 - 24575
Provision for Gratuity 4.71 (0.02) (3.60) 1.09
Provision for compensated absences 8.19 (2.50) - 5.69
Preliminary expenses 48.04 (16.01) - 32.03
Provision for doubtful debts 52.35 - - 52.35
Total deferred tax assets 292.86 47.65 (3.60) 336.91
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference in depreciation in block of assets (15.41) (0.90) - (16.31)
Deferred tax Assets 277.45 46.75 (3.60) 320.60
7 (d) Movement in deferred tax balances (Contd.)

As at Charged/ Charged/ As at

01 April 2022 (credited)to  (credited) to OCI 31 March 2023
Particulars profit and loss
Deferred tax Assets
Unabsorbed Business Loss 245.75 (53.34) - 192.41
Provision for Gratuity 1.09 7.22 (3.44) 4.87
Provision for compensated absences 5.69 (2.02) - 367
Preliminary expenses 32.03 (16.01) - 16.02
Provision for doubtful debts 52.35 - - 52.35
Total deferred tax assets 336.91 (64.15) (3.44) 269.32
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference in depreciation in block of assets (16.31) (4.14) - (20.45)
Deferred tax Assets 320.60 (68.29) (3.44) 248.87

& Co Chartey, artereef »
0\)':‘ \p\N AAC-1355 “‘“*]3 47

T.Q“sumbal g
O,

g

& X ?

LJ



R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

7 (e) Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rates:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

Profit/Loss from continuing operations before income tax expense (25,814.21) (3,700.38)
Tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax expenses on accounting loss (6,496.92) (931.31)
Tax effect amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income :

- Fair valuation of CCPS not deducitble for tax purpose 6,563.00 880.42
- Others 2.21 4.14
Total 68.29 (46.75)

Note 8 Inventories

As at 31 March  As at 31 March

Particulars 2023 2022

Land cost 11,803.02 11,803.02
Construction work-in-progress of Project Pune (Residential) 30,641.84 19,399.94
Total 42,444.86 31,202.96

During the year company has incurred cost of INR 11,241.90 Lakhs (31st March 2022: Rs. 14,511.43 Lakhs) which includes construction cost, duties
and taxes, professional fees, employee expenses and other site expenses incurred for the Central Park Project.

Note 9 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at 31 March  As at 31 March

2023 2022
Balances with banks
In current accounts* 7,097.44 1,954.61
Cash on hand 0.33 0.03
Total 7,097.77 1,954.64

*Balances with banks represent amounts in the designated separate bank accounts as per provisions of the Real Estate (Regulation and Development)
Act, 2016 and earmarked escrow accounts.

Note 9(a) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 March  As at 31 March

Particul

articulars 2023 2022
Deposits with banks, having remaining maturity for less than 12 months 1,090.21 105.79
Total 1,090.21 105.79

Note 10 (a) Other non-current assets

As at 31 March  As at 31 March

Particul

articulars 2023 2022
Costs to obtain contracts (refer note below) 5413.18 3,002.74
Total 5,413.18 3,002.74

Costs to obtain contracts such as brokerage fees paid for obtaining sales contracts, are recognised as assets when incurred and amortised over the
period of time or at the point in time depending upon recognition of revenue from the corresponding property sale contract.

Note 10 (b) Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at 31 March  As at 31 March

2023 2022
Advance paid to suppliers 3,829.06 1,496.97
Less: loss allowance (208.00) (208.00)
3,621.06 1,288.97
Prepaid expenses 285.86 280.59
Total 3,906.92 1,569.56
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to i as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounls in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Note 11 Equity share capltal

: As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 1}

500,000,000 (31 March 2022: 50,000) Equily shares of Rs. 10 each 50,000.00 500
29,00,00,000 (31 March 2022: 29,00,00,000) Compulsorily converible preference shares series | 29,000.00 29,000 00
of Rs. 10 each
21,00,00,000 (31 March 2022: 21,00,00,000) Compulsorily convertible preference shares series Il 21,000 00 21,000 00
of Rs. 10 each

100,000.00 50,005.00

= e
issued, subscribed and paid uo sh
40,62,20,000 (31 March 2022: 20,000) Equily shares of Rs. 10 each 40,622 00 200
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 40,622.00 2,00
a Reconcillation of number of equity shares as at the b ing and at the end of reporting period
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Parliculars
Number Rs. In lakhs Number Rs. [n lakhs

Shares ouistanding at the beginning of Lhe year 20,000 2.00 20,000 200
Add: Conversion of preference shares during the year (refer note as below) 406,200,000 40,620.00 - J
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 406,220,000 40,622.00 20,000 200

Note:
During the year ended March 31, 2023, 26,30,00,000 (March 31, 2022 - 26,30,00,000 ) Series | C
1:1.29

ily Convertible Pi

Shares (CCPS) were converted inlo equily at a ratio of

During lhe year ended March 31, 2023, 20,31,00,000 (March 31, 2022 - 20,31,00,000 ) Series |l Compulsorily Converlible Preference Shares (CCPS) were converted inlo equily al a ratio of

11,

b Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has fully paid up equity shares of face value INR 10 (Rupees Ten Only) each, having full voling and dividend rights The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject

lo the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, excepl in case of interim dividend. In Lhe event of liquidation, lhe equity st are eligible 1o receive the
remaining assets of the Company afler distribution of all preferential amounts in proporlion to iheir shareholding

¢ Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Rama:ol snarehoioer Number Percentage Number Percentage
Equity shares Rs. 10 each fully paid
Runwal Developers Private Limiled 203,110,000 50.00% 10,000 50.00%
White Harbor Investment Limiled 203,110,000 50.00% 10,000 50.00%

d Shares held by joint ventures

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Name of shareholder Number of shares % of total no of % change during Numbar of shares % of total no of shares % change during the
shares the year yoar

Equity shares Rs. 10 each fully paid

White Harbor Invesiment Limiled 203,110,000 50,00% 2031000 00% 10,000 50.00% 0%

e Details of shareholding of Promoters

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Name of shareholder Number of shares % of total no of % change during  Number of shares % of total no of shares % change during the
shares the year Near

Equity shares Rs. 10 each fully paid

Runwal Developers Private Limiled 203,110,000 50 00% 2031000 00% 10,000 50.00% 0%

Note 12 Other equity

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Retained eamings [Refer note below] (31,252.09) (5,379.83)
Securily Preimum = 36,354.90 .
Total 5,102.81 (5,379.83)

*Security premium represents lhe difference belween fair value and face value on the conversion of the compulsorily convertible preference shares series | and Il. The fair valuation is based

on {he valuation performed by a third parly registered valuer (Refer note 13 and 30)

Retalned earnings

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Opening balance
Loss for the year

(5,379 83) (1,736.81)
(25,882 50) (3,663.63)
Items of other comprehensive income recognised direclly in retained earnings
- Remeasurements of post-employment benafit cbligation, net of tax 10.71
{5,376.83)

Closing Balance

Y
ERN 30402661395
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Note 13 Borrowings

. As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Particulars
Non Current Current Non Current Current

Secured:
Bank overdraft - - - 1,897.53
Term Loan* = - 2,727.70 14.54
Unsecured:
Compulsorily convertible preference shares series | and Il - - 50,898.12 -
Total - - 53,6265.82 1,812.07

* Includes Interest accrued on long lerm borrowings

During the year 2019-20, the company issued 2,630 Lakhs Compuslorily convertible preference shares (Series I) and 2,031 Lakhs Compuslorily convertible
preference shares (Series Il) of face value of INR 10 each at par to White Harbor Investment Limited and Runwal Developers Private Limited respectively. The
CCPS have been classified as borrowings in accordance with Ind AS for FY 2021-22. As on 31st March 2023 the company converted Compuslorily convertible
preference shares (Series |) & (Series [1) into Equity Shares.

Terms of series | and series || CCPS

- Each series | and series || CCPS are issued with face value Rs. 10 each
- Each series | and series Il CCPS are non-cumulative participating compuisorily and fully convertible preference shares.

- Each series | and series Il CCPS shall be entitled to non-cumulative participating preferential dividend at the rate of 0.001% per annum (Previous year: 0.001%
per annum) which shall become due and payable as and when the company has profits available for distribution as per the Companies Act and dividend is
declared by the company

- The term of the series | and series i CCPS shall be a period of 19 (nineteen) years and 364 (three hundred and sixty-four days) from the date of their issuance

- Upon conversion of series | and series Il CCPS, the equity shares issued will, in all respects, rank pari passu with the equity shares in issue on the series |
CCPS conversion date

- Each series | and series | CCPS Issuance shall be converted into such number of equity shares as mentioned in the Articles or the Investment agreement, so
as to provide the holder thereof with its appropriate voting and economic interest in the Company.

For fair value of CCPS, refer note 25.
Terms of loans from bank and bank overdraft :

Interest on term loan :
The term loan carries an interest rate ranging from 10.45% p.a. to 10.50% p.a. (Previous year: 10,45% p.a. to 10.50% p.a.)

Interest on bank overdraft :
The interest rate on the bank overdraft will be MCLR plus the applicable margins as mutually agreed between the bank and the Company.

Terms of repayment of the term loan :
- The term loan are repayable in 18 monthiy installments commencing from August 15, 2024,

- The Borrower shall pay to the Lender, Interest on the principal amount of the Facility on the 15th day of each calendar month.

Terms of repayment of the bank overdraft :
Borrower shall be enlitled to repay the OD facility at any time from the date of disbursement of such OD facility, tilll the last OD reduction date on January 15,
2026.

The term loan and bank overdraft is secured by and other covenants :

- First and exclusive charge over entire project including FSI, land building with minimum security cover of 1.50.
- First and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on present and future scheduled receivables and all insurance proceeds from the project.
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

Note 14 Provisions

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Particul

gricuae Non Current Current Non Current Current
Provision for gratuity 19.18 0.17 18.91 0.10
Provision for compensated absences - 14.60 - 22.62
Total 19.18 14.77 18.91 22,72

a. Compensated absences

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences as per the policy of the Company. The entire amount of the
provision of Rs. 14.60 Lakhs (31 March 2022 : 22.62 Lakhs) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for the obligation. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all
employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the next 12 months

b. Defined contribution plans

Contribution to provident fund and other funds for all employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no
further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further
obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is as follows:

For the year ended Forthe year

Particulars 31 March 2023 ended 31 March
2022
Contribution to provident fund 20 51 15.25

c. Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan") covering eligible employees in accordance with the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Gratuity Plan, every employee who has completed atleast five years of service gets a
gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The scheme is unfunded. The Company's
liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are

recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.

(i) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as

follows:

Present value of obligation

For the year ended

31 March 2023

For the year
ended

_31 March 2022 _

Opening balance 19.01 19.05
Interest cost 1.38 1.30
Current service cost 12.16 15.21
Past service cost - -
Total amount recognised in the Statement of profit and ioss 13.54 16.51
Remesurements
Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions 1.62 0.32
(Liability Transferred Out/ Divestments) - (1.52)
(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) (1.14) (1.04)
Actuarial Losses on obligations - Due to Change in demographic assumptions - 0.01
Acturial (Gains)/losses on abligation - Due to change in financial assumptions (0.76) (1.44)
Acturial (gains) on obligation - Due to experience (12.92) (12.88)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (13.68) (14.31)
Closing balance 19.35 19.01
(ii) The net liability disclosed above relates to unfunded plans:
. As at As at

P I

articularg 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of benefit obligation 19.35 19.01
Net liability recognised in balance sheet 19.35 19.01




R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR unless otherwise stated)

(iii) Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
The significant actuarial assumptions are as follows:

. As at
Particulars 31 March 2023
Discount rate 7.50%
Salary escalation rate* 8.00%

Rate of Employee turnover

Mortality rate during employment

For service 4 years and below 10.00%
For service 5 years and above 2.00%

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)

* takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant factors.

(iv) The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Particulars Change in Impact on defined benefit obligation
assumption For the year ended
31 March 2023
Increase / (Decrease)
Discount rate 1% (2.87) 3.27
Salary escalation rate 1% 3.16 (2.68)
Rate of employee turnover 1% (0.52) 0.56
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 17 years (31 March 2022 - 18 years).
The defined benefit obligations shall mature after the end of reporting period is as follows:
. As at As at
Year ending 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1st following year 0.17 0.10
2nd following year 0.23 0.12
3rd following year 0.27 0.17
4th following year 0.39 151
5th following year 0.53 0.48
Sum of years 6 to 10 5.83 3.04
Sum of Years 11 and above 68.14 69.94

(v) Risk Exposure

Interest rate risk: A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Security Rate will increase the present value of the

liability requiring higher provision

Salary Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As
such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability.

Asset Liability Matching Risk: The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Entity has to manage pay-out based on

pay as you go basis from own funds
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R Retall Ventures Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounls in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 15 Trade payables

As at As at

icul
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Trade payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 138.17 24037
(ii} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 3,203.18 1,876.20
Total 3,341.35 2,116.57

Note: Trade payables include retention money of INR 492 02 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: INR 229.34 Lakhs)

Dues to micro and small enterprises
The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act’). The disclosure pursuant to lhe said MSMED Act are
as follows:

As at As at

Particulars
a 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

a Principal amount due to suppliers registered under lhe MSMED Act and remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year,
13817 24037

b. Interest amount due to suppliers regislered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid lo any supplier at the end of each accounting year;

c. the amount of interest paid by lhe buyer in terms of section 16 of lhe Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along
with the amounl of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

d. the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during lhe year) but
without adding Lhe interest specified under lhe Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008;

e the amounl of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year;

f. lhe amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to
the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deduclible expenditure under seclion 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Developmenl Act, 2006 z

As at 31 March 2023
Aging of trade payables :

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Unbilled Not due Less than 1 1-2years 2 -3 years More than 3 Total
year years

Undisputed trade payables

(1) MSME 62.09 55.69 11.78 2.80 5.81 - 138.17

(ii} Others 862.99 375.44 742 84 1,113 58 100.27 8.06 3,203.18

Disputed trade payables
{iii) Disputed dues - MSME - E . - - =

(iii) Disputed dues - Others - E - = = S
Total 925.08 431.13 754.62 1,116.38 106.08 8.06 3,.341.35

As at 31 March 2022
Aging of trade payables :
Outstanding for following perlods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not due Less than 1 1-2years 2 -3 years More than 3 Toal
year years
|Undisputed trade payables
(i) MSME 0,76 - 280 141.03 9578 24037
ii) Others 4578 7.99 1,424.06 353.24 4513 1,876.20

Disputed trade payables
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - . = = = -

ili) Dispuied dues - Others - . - - = =
Total 46.54 7.99 1,426.86 494.27 140.91 2,116.57

Note: The amounts outstanding in respect of MSME vendors are on account of retention money as per the contractual agreement with the vendors

Note 16 Other current financial liabilities

: As at As at
rticul
Particulars 31 March 202331 March 2022
Employee related payables 70.24 101.41
Total 70.24 101.41

Note 17 Other current liabilities

. As at As at
adiculars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Statutory tax payables 663 49 30565
Advances received against sale of flats/ units (contract liabilities) [Refer note below] 55,24083 22,546 36
Total 55,904.32 21_’&52.01

Note:

A Contract liability is the obligation to lransfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideralion (or amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a
customer pay consideration before the Company transfer goods or services to lhe customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabililies are recognised as revenue when the Company performs its abligation under the conlract
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 18 Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

famticulacs 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Interest income from Inter corporate deposit to subsidiary 1,655.59 1,432.41
Interest income on fixed deposits 5.31 6.89
Miscellaneous income 71.93 21.77
Total 1,732.83 1,461.07

Note 19 Employee benefits expense

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Salaries, wages and bonus 1,362.19 1,719.99
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 14) 20.51 16.25
Gratuity (Refer Note 14) 13.54 16.51
Compensated absences (Refer Note 14) - 4,94
Staff welfare 127.08 33.11
1,523.33 1,789.80
Less: Amount transferred to inventories 695.20 844.33
Total 828.13 945.47
Note 20 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation of tangible assets (Refer Note 3a) 34.00 31.06
Depreciation of Right-to-use asset (Refer Note 3b) 106.82 105.14
140.82 136.19
Less: Amount transferred to inventories and Investment property under construction 53.41 6257
Total 87.41 83.62
Note 21 Other expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Electricity and water charges 16.73 89,36
Professional fees 78.34 86.88
Insurance 2.20 8.26
Printing and stationery 6.45 5.43
Travel and conveyance 57.01 68.83
Advertisement and sales promotion 250.14 260.19
Payment to auditors
-Audit fee 13.00 13.00
-Other audit services 3.00 3.00
-Re-imbursement of expenses 0.16 0.15
Stamp duty expense - 21.60
Software maintenance expense 11.61 15.66
Fair value losses on financial liablilities measured at fair value through profit or loss (refer note 30) 26,076.78 3,498.16
Hiring and Recuitment expenses 57.26 -
Miscellaneous expenses 50.04 45.81
Total 26,622.72 4,116.33

Note 22 Finance costs

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 3b) 6.81 14.72
Interest on bank overdraft 135.96 71.37
Interest on term Loan 50,70 337.41
Loan processing fees - 87.02
Finance charges 1.96 1.31

195.43 511.83
Less: Amount Capitalised in inventories under construction 186.65 495,80
Total s ._"}w?:.':,r,t‘:\\ B.78 16.03
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

Note 23 Additional requlatory information required by Schedule llI

vi.

vii.

viii.

Xi.

xXii.

xii.

Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

Borrowing secured against current assets
The Company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. The Company is not
required to file quarterly returns or statements with the bank and has accordingly not filled the same.

Wilful defaulter
The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority,

Relationship with struck off companies
The company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current financial year or
previous financial year.

Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

Valuation of PP&E, right-of-use assets, intangible asset and investment property
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during
the current or previous year.

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Uitimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the company

The title deeds of all the immovable property (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in note 4 and 8, to the financial statements, are held in the name of the
company.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
The borrowings obtained by the company from bank have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were was taken.
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xiv. Analytical ratios

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 % Variance
- Current ratio (times)

(a) current assets 58,812 56,897

(b) current liabilities 59,452 27,120

Current ratio (a)/(b) 0.99 210 -53%
- Debt equity ratio (times)

(a) total debt - 55,538

(b) equity 40,622 2

Debt equity ratio (a)/(b) - 27,769 -100%
- Return on equity (%)

(a) net profit after tax (25,883) (3,654)

(b) average shareholders equity 40,622 2

Return on equity (a)/(b) -64% -182682% -100%
- Return on capital employed (%)

(a) earnings before interest and tax (25,805) (3,684)

(b) capital employed 45,725 50,160

Return on capital employed (a)/(b) -56.44% -7.35% 668%
- Net capital turnover ratio (times)

(a) turnover 1,733 1,461

(b) working capital (640) 29,777

Net capital turnover ratio (a)/(b) (2.71) 0.05 -5620%
- Net profit ratio (%)

(a) net profit after tax (25,883) (3,654)

(b) turnover 1,733 1,461

Net profit ratio (a)/(b) -1494% -250% 497%

Current ratio (times)

As at 31 March 2023: Current assets decreased due to increased in customer advances as compared to previous year due to
advances received against Phase |, Il and Il of the Central Park Project.

Debt equity ratio(%)

As at 31 March 2023 CCPS were converted into equity shares.

Return on equity (%)

As at 31 March 2023: Increase in fair valuation of CCPS has impacted profit for the year which resulted increase in return on equity

in current year.

Return on capital employed (%)

As at 31 March 2023: Increase in fair valuation of CCPS has impacted profit for the year which resulted increased in return on

capital employed in current year.

Net capital turnover ratio

As at 31 March 2023: Current liabilities increased due to increased in customer advances.

Net profit ratio (%)

As at 31 March 2023: Increase in fair valuation of CCPS has impacted profit for the year which resulted increased in return on

capital employed in current year.
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 24 Related party transactions as per ind AS 24
(A) Name of related Parties and nature of relationship :

(a) Subsidiaries: Histyle Retail Private Limited (India)
Galleria Retail Private Limtied (India)
Aethon Developers Private Limited (India)

(b} Entity jointly controlled by Runwal Developers Private Limited (India)
White Harbor Investment Limited (Mauritius)
(c) Key Management Persons: Mr. Sandeep Runwal (w.e.f. 23rd May 2019)
Directors Mr. Anish Saraf (w.e.f. 14th June 2019)

Mr. Swapni Sinha (w.e.f. 17th March 2021)

Ms. Sangeeta Prasad ( w.e.f. 10th January 2022)
Mr. Sanjay Dube (Upto 30th November 2021)

Mr. Sanjay Daga (Upto 16th February 2022)

Company Secretary Ms. Nirali Mehta (w.e.f. 15th July 2023)

(d) Entities where KMPs have significant influence Dhruva Woollen Mills Private Limited
Runwal Constructions

(e) Relative of Key Management Persons: Mrs. Chanda S. Runwal
Mr. Saurabh S. Runwal
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Allamounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 25 Fair Value Measurements
a) Financial instruments classified by categories :

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Particulars INR INR

Financial assets at amortised cost

Loans 24,998.00 19,448.00

Other financial assets 427223 2,616.33

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,090.21 105,78

Cash and cash equivalents 7.097.77 1,954 .64

Total Financial assets 37,458.21 24,124.76

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade payables 3,341.36 2,116,57

Lease liabilities 220.49 115,55

Other financial liablities 70.24 101.41
3,632.09 2,333.53

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Borrowings B 53,625.82

Total Financial liablities 3,632.09 55,959.35

b) Financial instruments classified by hierarchy :

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost/fair value through profit or loss for which fair values are disclosed :

As at 31st Mar 2023 Notes Level 1 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at amortised cost

Loans 6(a) 24,998.00 24,998.00

Other financial assets 6(b) 4,272.23 4,272.23

Bank balances other than cash and cash 9(a) 1,090.21 1,090.21

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents 9 7.097.77 7,097.77

Total financial assets 37,458.21 37,458.21

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade payables 15 3,341 .36 3,341.36

Lease liabilities 3(b) 220.49 220.49

Other financial liablities 16 70.24 70.24
3,632.09 3,632.09

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Borrowings 13 - -

Total financial liabilities 3,632.09 3,632.09

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost/fair value through profit or loss for which fair values are disclosed :

As at 31st Mar 2022 Notes Level 1 Level 3 Total

Financial assets at amortised cost

Loans 6(a) 19,448.00 19,448.00

Other financial assets 6(b) 2,616.33 2,616.33

Bank balfances other than cash and cash 9(a) 105.79 105.79

equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents 9 1,954.64 1,954.64

Total financial assets 24,124.76 24,124.76

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Trade payables 15 2,116.57 2,116.57

Lease liabilities 3(b) 115.55 115.55

Other financial liablities 16 101.41 101.41
2,333.53 2,333.53

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Borrowings 13 53,625.82 53,625.82

Total financial liabilities 55,959.35 55,959.35

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instrument by valuation technique:

The fair value of financial instruments are classified into three categories i.e. Level 1, 2 or 3 depending on the inputs used in the valuation
technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and

lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).

The hierarchies used are as follows:
« Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in an active market;

= Level 2: Directly or indirectly abservable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

» Level 3: Inputs which are not based on cbservable market data

(c) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale, The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the

fair values:

The carrying amounts of trade payables, borrowings, lease liabilities, loans, other financial liabilities, other financial assets and cash and cash

equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature,

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortised cost, the carrying amounts are not materially different from their respective fair

values,
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(d) Valuation process and technique:
The fair valuation of the compuisorily convertible preference shares is based on the valuation performed by a third party registered
valuer. The valuation has been determined using the enterprise value of the entity. (Refer Note 30)
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Note 28 Financial risk managemaent

The Company's business aclivities expose it lo a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and
execute its business slrategies. The Company's senior management and key managerial personnel have the ultimate responsibility for managing these risks. The Company has a mechanism lo identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits

The Company's senior management and key managerial personnel are supported by Lhe finance team and respective depariments that provides assurance that the Company's financial risk activities are
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objeclives, The activities are designed to
protect the Company's financial resulls and positicn from financial risks; and mainlain market risks wilhin acceptable parameters, while optimising returns. The risk arising from the foreign currency fluctuation
is insignificant considering the current business condition

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or fulure cash flows that may result from a change in the value of a financial asset. The value of a financial asset may change as a result of
changes in the interest rates, change in credit risks and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is atiributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including
deposits, payables and loans and borrowings.

{i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is Lhe risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is not malerially exposed to any foreign
exchange risk during the reporting periods

{ii}) interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is Lhe risk hat the fair value of future cash flows of Lhe financial instruments will flucluale because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is mainly exposed to interest rate risk
due to ils variable interest rate borrowings. The inlerest rate risk arises due to uncertainties about the future market inlerest rate of these borrowings. The Company monitors fluctuations in interest rale
continuously and aims to minimise impact of interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate risk related to borrowings with floating rate of interest:

. As at 31 March As at 31 March
Particulars 2023 2022
Borrowings bearing floating rate of interast - 4,625.23

Interest Rate sensitivity

A change of 50 bps in interast rates would have following Impact on loss before tax

As at 31 March As at 31 March

Particulars 2023 2022
50 bp increase- decrease in loss * N (2319)
50 bp decrease- Increase in loss * d 2313

* Sensilivity is calculated based on the assumption that amount outstanding as at reporting dates were utilised for the whole financial period

{b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from Lhe possibilily Lhat the counter party may not be able to selile lheir obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Company periodically assesses financial reliability of counter parties,
taking into account the financial condition, current economic lrends, and analysis of historical bad debls and ageing of financial assets. Individual risk limits are set and periodically reviewed on the basis of
such information. The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether lhere has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis through each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the Company compares the risk of default occurring on asset as at the reporling dale with lhe risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information such as:

i) Actual or expecled significant adverse changes in business,

ii) Aclual or expected significanl changes in the operaling results of the counterparty,

iii) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty's ability to meel its obligations,

iv) Significant increase in credit risk on olher financial instruments of the same counlerparty,

v) Significant changes in the value of the collaleral supporling the obligation or in the quality of the third-parly guarantees or credit enhancements

Financial assets for which loss allowances is measured using the Expected credit Losses (ECL)
(¢} Liquidity risk
The principal sources of liquidity of the Company are cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and the cash flow thal is generated from operations, The Company believes lhat current cash and cash

equivalents, tied up borrowing lines and cash flow that is generated from operations is sufficient to meet requirements. Accordingly, liquidity risk is perceived to be low. The following table shows the maturity
analysis of financial liabilities of the Company based on conlractually agreed undiscounted cash flows as at the Balance Sheel date :

Maturities of financial liabilities

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Less than 1 year 1-2 years More than 2 years Total Less than 1 year 1-2 years More than 2 years Total
Trade payable 3,341.36 - - 3,341.36 2,116.57 - - 2,116 .57
Borrowings - - - - 1,897 53 - 51,728 29 53,625 82
Lease liabilities 121.06 99.43 - 22049 115.55 . . 11555
Financial guarantes conlracts 28,822 50 - - 28,922 50 26,640.00 - = 26,640.00
Total 32,384.92 99.43 - 32,484.35 30,769.65 - 51,728.29 82,497.94

Financing arrangements:
The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of lhe reporting period:

As at 31 March As at 31 March

Particulars 2023 2022
Expiring beyond one year (bank loans) 30,000.00 19.625.83

Note 27 Capital Management

The Company aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard ils ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to its shareholders The capital structure of lhe Company is based on
management's judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its slrategic and day-lo-day needs. The Company considers the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manages
the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characterislics of lhe underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capilal structure, the Company may borrow from external
parties such as banks or financial instilutions. The Company's palicy is to maintain a stable and strong capital struclure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain shareholder, creditor and stakeholder
confidence to sustain fulure development and growih of its business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to mainlain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure

The Company is not subject to any other externally imposed capital requirement
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 28 Net debt reconciliation

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 | As at 31 March 2022
Current borrowings = 1,912.07
Non- current borrowings - 53,625.82
Total Borrowings - 55,537.89
Cash and cash equivalents 7.097.77 1,954 64
Total Net debt (7,097.77) 53,583.25
Particulars Cash and cash equivalents Total Borrowings Total Net Debt |
Net debt as at 31 March 2021 908.72 47,399.96 46,491.24 |
Cash flows 1,045.92 4,639.77 3,593.85
Interest expense - - -
Interest paid - - -
Fair value adjustments - 3,498.16 3,498.16
Net debt as at 31 March 2022 1,954.64 55,537.89 53,583.25
Cash flows 5,143.13  (4,639.77) (9,782.90)
Interest expense - - -
Interest paid - - -
Compulsorily convertible preference ) (76,974.90) (76.974.90)
shares

Fair value adjustments - 26,076.78 26,076.78
Net debt as at 31 March 2023 7,097.77 - (7,097.77)

Note 29

The company has ongoing construction of residential premises and made loss for the year ended March 31, 2023. The
management of the Company is confident of its ability to continue operations for a foreseeable future on the basis of the
funding from bank loan facility. customer advances on sold flats and future cash flows from the ongoing projects. Based on
the cash flow projection for next 12 months, the Company is confident of its ability to meet the funds requirement and to
continue its business as a going concem. Accordingly. these standalone financial statements have been prepared on a
going concem basis.

Note 30

During the current year. the Compulsorily convertible preference shares (Series |) & (Series ) have been converted into
equity shares based on the method of conversion as per the terms CCPS on March 31. 2023. The Company has also
recognized fair value of the CCPS prior to conversion of INR 26.076.78 lakhs based on the valuation carmed out by a third
party independent registered valuer The valuation has been determined using the enterprise value of the entity. The
salient features of the same are as below:

For R Retail Ventures Private Limited:

The valuation has been carmed out through discounted cash flow method for detemmining the value of the residential project
in Pune and the value of commercial land at Pune is determined on the basis of market value method.

For Histyle Retail Private Limited:

The valuation has been carried out through discounted cash flow method for determining the value of commercial project in
Andheri. The method of valuation for the commercial project is based on discounted cash flow method based on the project
progress and milestone achievement as compared to the market value method in the previous year.

For Aethon Developers Private Limited and Galleria Retail Private Limited:
The Company has used the NAV method for determining the valuation of the subsidiaries as they are at initial stage of
evaluation.
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R Retail Ventures Private Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 31 Segment information

territory. Thus, there is only one geography which is India.

Note 32 Loss per share

The Company is in the business of Real Estate Development of a commercial and residential premises in Pune, Maharashtra. There is no other
activities being carried out by the company. Geographically, the development is being carried out only in India, and there are no sales outside this

For the year ended

For the year ended

Previous year numbers have been re-classified/re-grouped to conform the current year's classification.

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Loss for the year (A) (25,882.50) (3,653.63)
Calculation of weighted average number of equity shares
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 20,000 20,000
Number of equity shares at the end of the year 406,220,000 20,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 1,132,877 20,000
the year (B)
Basic loss per share (A/B) (in Rs.) (2,284.67) (18,268.15)
Diluted loss per share (A/B) (in Rs.) (2,284.67) (18,268.15)
Note 33

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009 R Retail Ventures Private Limited

\,_//' CIN: U70200MH2018PTC313615
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